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MINUTES OF THE KENT COUNTY LEVY COURT 
COMBINED MEETING 

KENT COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLEX 
555 BAY ROAD, DOVER, DE 

LEVY COURT CHAMBER, ROOM 203 
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 24, 2017 

Call to Order 

The Combined Business meeting of the Kent County Levy Court was called to 
order at 7:00p.m. by President Banta. 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 

The Invocation was led by Mr. Howell and the Pledge of Allegiance was led by 
Mr. Angel. 

Moment of Silence for our Troops 

A moment of silence was observed for our Troops and led by Mr. Sweeney. 

Roll call and Determination of Quorum 

Allan F. Angel 
Eric L. Buckson 
James E. Hosfelt, Jr. 
Glen M. Howell 
Terry L. Pepper 
George W. Sweeney, Sr. 
P. Brooks Banta 

Commissioner 
Commissioner 
Commissioner 
Commissioner 
Vice President 
Commissioner 
President 

There are seven (7) Commissioners present at Roll Call. 

Adoption of Agenda as Amended 

Motion was made by Mr. Pepper; seconded by Mr. Sweeney; carried by roll call 
vote seven (7) yeas to adopt the Agenda. 
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Consent Agenda 17-14 
Items on the Consent Agenda are considered routine and/or non-controversial and 
will be acted upon by a single roll call vote of the Levy Court. There will be no 
separate discussion of these items unless a Commissioner so requests, in which 
event the items shall be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered 
separately under New Business. 

• Levy Court Business Meeting Minutes ofTuesday, October 10,2017 
• Items from the October 10, 2017 Committee Meetings: 

• South Basin Liner Replacement - Engineering Services Contract 
Amendment 

Motion to approve Consent Agenda 17-14 made by Mr. Howell; seconded by 
Mr. Pepper; carried by roll call vote seven (7) yeas. 

PRESENTATIONS 

Employee of the Month -November 2017 

The following was read into the record by Lorri Tanaka: 
Kent County Department Heads have selected Elizabeth A. Caufield from the 
Department of Planning Services as the November 2017 Employee of the Month. 

Betsy started with Kent County in June 2015 and serves as a Planner I in the 
Planning Division. Her primary duties include review of site plans and 
subdivision plans for compliance with all ordinances and regulations and good 
planning principles; researching requests for re-zonings, variances and special use 
permits; assisting the general public in understanding complex planning principles 
and practices through pre-application meetings; and preparing staff reports. 

Betsy has earned high praise from supervisors for her effective design and 
management of the social media strategy for the Comprehensive Plan. She has 
been instrumental in developing the Plan, and consistently met aggressive and 
perhaps intimidating deadlines not just without complaint but with 
enthusiasm. She has accomplished all of that while also managing the normal day 
to day activities of Planning. 

According to Planning Services Director Sarah Keifer, "While Betsy has been 
with us only a relatively short time, she has had a substantial impact on our 
Department. Her GIS and social media work for the Comprehensive Plan are 
invaluable and her positive attitude is refreshing and very much appreciated. We 
are all pleased to have her as part of our team." Congratulations Betsy on a job 
well done! Betsy currently resides in New Castle County. 

Kent County Levy Court 
November 2017 Employee of the Month 



3 

Elizabeth A. Caufield 
On this, the 24th day of October 2017, 

the Levy Court of 
Kent County, State of Delaware, does hereby recognize 

Elizabeth A. "Betsy" Caufield 
Planner I 

Department ofPlanning Services/Planning Division 
for her exceptional initiative, dedication, and conscientiousness in 

the delivery of services to the citizenry of the County. 

10/24117 

Betsy, was met at the front by the Commissioners, County Administrator for 
congratulatory remarks and photos. 

Mr. Banta: Inaudible 

Mr. Pepper: Betsy thank you for doing such a great job in the County. Your job 
is very technical and there's a lot to know and a lot to be able to put into motion so 
it says a lot that you've been nominated for this today. Keep up the good work. 
We certainly do appreciate it. 

Mr. Buckson: Yeah, high praise, great job. Early, so, we expect bigger and better 
things from you, so keep doing what you're doing and I'm sure we'll figure out 
some more things you can excel in. Great job, thanks. 

Mr. Angel: Ditto. It's the easiest thing to say because by the time it gets over 
there it's going to be the same thing, but just keep up the good work. You make 
us look good all the time and that's what our employees always try and do for us. 
Thank you. 

Mr. Sweeney: Betsy, congratulations, you represent the best of the County. Not 
only for those of us who are standing up here with you but also for the County 
residents and we appreciate it, so congratulations. Only two more ... are in line for 
the $500.00, so good luck. 

Mr. Howell: I agree; we're glad to have you and hope you stay here a long time. 
Good work. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Again, congratulations and thanks for everything you do for the 
County. We certainly appreciate it. 

Mr. Petit de Mange: Betsy, on behalf of your fellow employees, I just want to 
extend a hand of congratulations and say thank you for the great job you're doing. 
Heard nothing but great praise about Betsy and the job you're doing. I don't get to 
see you that often, but whenever I do, you always have that bright smile on your 
face, you're always happy; you've got a bounce in your step. You've got great, 
positive energy. You're currently living up in New Castle County, in Newark? 
When I first came to work for Kent County I did a year long commute, eventually 
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I moved down here. Look, you know thirty years from now you might be County 
Administrator or something like that. 

Ms. Caufield: I just want to say thank you for recognizing the hard work. I really 
appreciate it. The Comprehensive Plan is a big project; it's definitely been a 
challenge but it's been a fun challenge. Sara and Chris are great supervisors and 
directors. Tyler, Jason, Michelle; the whole Planning Staff who really drive me to 
work very hard; we've done a great job even though we've been short-staffed; 
we're doing good. I really appreciate, you know, recognizing all the hard work, 
not only me, but our department. 

Mr. Banta: Well, we appreciate the job you do and we will present this to you 
and I think someone may take a picture. 

Resolution 3663, Retirement of Albert F. Biddle, Jr. 

Lorri Tanaka read the following into the record: 
Whereas, the retirement of Albert F. Biddle, Jr., an employee of Kent County, 
State of Delaware, from his duties as Housing and Community Development 
Supervisor, in the Planning Services Department, presents a suitable opportunity 
for expressing the esteem in which we hold Albert F. Biddle, as a good and 
faithful public servant. 

Therefore, Be It Resolved that the County of Kent express its warmest 
appreciation and thanks to Albert F. Biddle for the able and loyal manner in 
which he performed his public duties. 

Be if Further Resolved that this resolution be his evidence of a right to the 
pension provided by the Kent County Employees' Retirement Program; and that 
this Resolution be and hereby is incorporated into the official minutes of the 
October 24, 201 7 meeting of the Kent County Levy Court. 

Motion to approve Resolution 3663, Retirement of Albert F. Biddle, Jr. made by 
Mr. Pepper; seconded by (inaudible); carried by roll call vote seven (7) yeas. 

Mr. Biddle joined the County Administrator and Commissioners at the front for 
photos and well-earned best wishes on his retirement. 

Mr. Banta: So Albert, when I came on Levy Court in '97 you were just a young 
kid, just starting out, deciding what you wanted to do in life. You chose this 
pattern. Believe it or not, you have done an outstanding job; you have far 
surpassed any expectations anyone would have had of you. You've worked 
diligently, you've worked hard. You will do one thing a lot of people don't do, 
you answer the phone. You're always there when we need you and you get the 
job done. I don't know what else to say except best wishes in your retirement. 
You've earned it. 
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Mr. Pepper: Albert, you've done a fantastic job over the years of being the go
between between people that didn't have homes to people that do have homes 
now. Repairing dilapidated homes throughout the County; making neighborhoods 
a better place to live and the homes a better place to live for folks. You've done 
an outstanding job; you're a get-the-job-done type of person. We appreciate that 
and wish you the best in the future and hope that your retirement is all you hope it 
to be. Congratulations. 

Mr. Buckson: Albert, it's been a please to work with you. I know the County's 
benefited extremely from your efforts to participate in, enforce, enact, enable, 
whatever you want to call it, the Grant Program that does a lot of good that a lot 
of folks don't actually realize except the families that get to participate in it. For 
that I commend you, great job. I'm certainly not going to vote no because I think 
you've earned the retirement and I hope you certainly enjoy it but we're going to 
miss you; I mean that. Thanks. 

Mr. Angel: Albert, I'm going to miss you, too because we have a long history. 
We actually graduated from high school same year, '71. There's life after high 
school, then you came here. Now you're going to be passing your baton to 
somebody else; once we do I hope you'll come back and at least help that person 
fmd the little nooks and crannies to help do their job. You've done a fantastic job 
in helping the people of our community and Levy Court and we'll be sorry to see 
you go. Happy retirement. 

Mr. Sweeney: Mr. Biddle, congratulations on your retirement. What 
Commissioner Buckson was referring to, if you've ever ridden through some of 
the elderly, some of the older developments in our County and saw a house that 
was boarded up. Then a few months later you rode through and saw a house that 
was almost completely renovated. It's probably because of this man here. I get a 
lot of complaints about those types of houses and we bring them to his attention 
and he's there to help to the point that the first year I was on Levy Court one of 
the houses that came in front of us through Mr. Biddle was the house that I grew 
up in in Rodney Village. Congratulations on your retirement. You will be greatly 
missed sir. 

Mr. Howell: What year did you start here? Because I remember, believe it or 
not, I remember you starting here. I've known you for a while. All these years 
have passed and now you can retire. Don't get too sunburned fishing too much. 
Enjoy yourself. Appreciate it. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Congratulations, sir. I hope retirement is everything that you hope it 
is or that you wish it to be. Congratulations. 

Mr. Petit de Mange: Albert, on behalf of your Kent County family here I just 
want to wish you all the best. 1987. I remember when you were hired and 
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Michael Thompson was the Director of Community Development at the time. I 
just wonder if we tallied up all the lives you touched over those years, it'd be in 
the 1OOO's. And as the Commissioners all said, you had a heart for people who 
are less fortunate. You did a lot of great work out there helping people get the 
homes fixed up and in livable condition. Commendable job. You're a humble 
person, you don't like the limelight. You're probably like, "I can't wait to sit 
down" right now. On behalf of the County, all your fellow employees, and Levy 
Court, we have a gift for you to take with you to hopefully remember all the good 
times here and all the great work you did here for Kent County. Congratulations. 

Mr. Biddle: I just want to say thank you to Levy Court. You guys are at the top; 
you take the good and the bad, but I think it's been good. It's been 30 years; I 
appreciate that. If I try to go down from there I will miss somebody and that 
would be even worse than anything. But I do appreciate the people I work with. 
There are some fantastic employees that I've worked with and that I've worked 
around over the years. We did some good things. I can say there's a challenge; 
there's still plenty to do. You guys know that there is. The challenge is out to 
every County employee, there's still plenty to do, so there's plenty they can do it 
the future. Thank you. 

INTRODUCTIONS 

Allan Kujala: We do have two new employees to introduce to Levy Court. The 
first will be introduced by County Administrator, Michael Petit de Mange and 
he'll be followed by the director of Planning Services Sarah Keifer. 

Mr. Petit de Mange: Good evening Commissioners. I have the distinct pleasure 
of introducing tonight our newest member to Levy Court Office, our Public 
Information Officer Kelly Dewitt Pitts, who's standing right here on my right. 
Just a little bit about Kelly before I turn the mic over to her. Kelly is originally a 
native of Wisconsin and she came East to go to University, attended the 
University ofDelaware, graduated with a Bachelor's degree in Mass 
Communication and went on to earn her Master's degree in Journalism and Public 
Affairs from the American University in Washington, D.C. After that time she 
did a number of things. One of the fun facts about Kelly, I think is early in her 
career she served as an on-the-field sideline reporter for football and basketball 
games on-camera, which I thought was a pretty unique experience. She also ran a 
small business. She has flair for urban and I guess architectural design and she 
had Dewitt Interiors for a while as an entrepreneur. More importantly, she spent 
about 10 years working for the State of Delaware, first in the Secretary's Office in 
the Department of Natural Resources as a Public Affairs Representative for 
Department of Natural Resources and then later a similar job in the Public Affairs 
Department at Del-dot where she served in the Secretary's Office as well in the 
Public Affairs arena. Most recently, Kelly has been working for a local church 
here in Dover. She resides in Dover and she also lives in Commissioner Hosfelt's 
district and Commissioner Pepper's district. Again, we are so delighted to have 
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Kelly join the County family. I know she's going to do great things here for us. 
Kelly? 

Ms. Pitts: Thank you, Mike. It's been a pleasure so far. It's been a very busy six 
days. I'm working on the Spring Newsletter already and you should be seeing a 
new cover and a new look on that. I've also been working with Jeremy at the Rec 
Center and within the next 3 or 4 weeks you should see us on Delmarva Life. We 
met with WBOC yesterday and that should be coming up soon. It's been a 
pleasure. 

Mr. Banta: Welcome aboard, we're glad to have you here. 

Ms. Keifer: Good evening, Commissioners. I would like to introduce to Joshua 
Shepherd. Josh joined us just last Monday, the 16th as a GIG Tech I in Planning 
Services. He most recently graduated from the University of Maryland in their 
Geographical Services Department; he received his Bachelors in May of this year. 
Even in the short time that he's been here Josh has jumped right in to our GIS 
work, started to create story maps, adding on to the maps that we'd already 
created for the Comprehensive Plan. So, we are exceptionally pleased to have 
Josh on board. 

Mr. Shepherd: Commissioners, thank you very much for the opportunity. It's 
very nice. I actually grew up in the Dover area, moved away to go to College and 
here I am back working again with the County. I am very excited to get right into 
it and try to make Kent County as great as we can. Thank you again and I really 
appreciate the opportunity. 

Mr. Banta: Well, Josh, we're glad to have you here. I'm glad you reside in the 1st 
Levy Court District which I share a little bit of that with Commissioner Pepper. 
We appreciate you joining our team and I'm sure it will work out fine. 

Mr. Pepper: Thank you and good luck. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

KCSDDl PROPOSED SEWER EXTENSION 
Mr. Angel: 
1. Resolution 3661, Kent County Sewage Disposal District No. 1 

(KCSDDl) Proposed Sewer Extension- New Harvest Baptist Church
East Dover Area 

Diane Golt: Commissioners, before you is Resolution 3661, Kent County 
Sewage Disposal District No. 1 Proposed Sewer Extension for New Harvest 
Baptist Church which is in the East Dover Area. The Engineering Division 
received a request from the property owners of the New Harvest Baptist Church 
to receive County Sanitary Sewer Service. It is an extension into the East Dover 
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Area. The property is located adjacent to Grandview and M & S Mobile Home 
Parks which currently have County Sewer. The property is located within the 
City of Dover Municipal Boundaries. This City does not currently have gravity 
sewer available for the parcel. It is willing to relinquish its rights to provide the 
sewer service to this location and a letter has been provided from the acting City 
Manager. As depicted on the attached map, which is on the view screen, it shows 
the location of the property and the adjacent sewer infrastructure. The owners of 
the property would be responsible for the design, permitting and construction of 
the proposed infrastructure. In addition, they're responsible for getting the 
commercial permit and paying all the impact fees. Sewer Advisory Board 
reviewed the request on October 4th, Staff and Sewer Advisory Board are both in 
favor of the proposed sewer extension. 

Questions -None 

Public Hearing is Open on Resolution 3661 

IN FAVOR- None 

IN OPPOSITION- None 

Public Hearing is Closed on Resolution 3661 

Mr. Angel: This area has been vacant for many years and it has become kind of 
an eyesore. It's right around the comer from where I basically live on that street, 
off that street. With the way the world is today I'm glad to see a church going up 
and this is your angel speaking. A Resolution upon proposal to extend Kent 
County Sewer Disposal District No. 1 pursuant to Section 4606 , Chapter 46, Title 
9 of the Delaware Code, as Amended, the East Dover Area- New Harvest Baptist 
Church, I Move to approve; seconded by Mr. Pepper. 

Roll call: 

Mr. Angel: Yes, all the reasons stated by Ms. Golt. 

Mr. Buckson: Yes, reasons stated. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Yes, reasons stated. 

Mr. Howell: Yes, reasons stated. 

Mr. Pepper: Yes, reasons stated. 

Mr. Sweeney: Yes, for all reasons stated. 
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Mr. Banta: Based on the recommendation of the Sewer Advisory Board and Staff 
and Mr. Angel I vote yes. 

Roll call reveals seven (7) yeas. Resolution 3661 has been approved. 

INCREASING DISABLE PROPERTY OWNER AND SENIOR CITIZEN 
EXEMPTION AMOUNT 

Mr. Hosfelt: 
1. Ordinance LC17-24, An Ordinance to amend Kent County Code, Vol. II, 
Chapter 191, Taxation; Article I: Disabled Property Owner and Senior Citizen 
Exemption; § 197-7 Income Limits, as amended, by increasing the exemption 
amount. 

Susan Durham: Good evening. Ordinance LC17-24 is an Ordinance to amend 
Chapter 191 of the Kent County Code known as the program providing partial tax 
relief for totally disabled property owners and property owners 65 years of age 
and older. The amendment would basically change the adjusted gross income for 
single applicants from $16,000.00 to $18,000.00 and for married applicants from 
$22,000.00 to $24,750.00. We brought this to the Levy Court Committee on 
October the 3rd and had reported that we checked other municipalities and 
counties and feel that this is within a range that's a good average and is reasonable 
for the area. Are there any questions? 

QUESTIONS- None 

Public Hearing is Open on Ordinance LC17-24 

IN FAVOR- None 

IN OPPOSITION- None 

Public Hearing is Closed On Ordinance LC17-24 

Mr. Hosfelt: I'd like to Move forward Ordinance LC17-24, an Ordinance to 
Amend Kent County Code, Vo. II, Chapter 191, Taxation; Article I: Disabled 
Property Owner and Senior Citizen Exemption; S 197-7 Income Limits, as 
amended; seconded by Mr. Angel. 

Roll call: 

Mr. Angel: Yes. 

Mr. Buckson: Yes, based on I like the fact that this is what we are doing, no 
public opposition, Staff supports it, so yes. 
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Mr. Hosfelt: Yes, based on the information supplied by Staff and the need of our 
constituents. 
Mr. Howell: Yes, reasons stated. 

Mr. Pepper: Yes, based on the fact that this reflects the cost of living for the area. 

Mr. Sweeney: My vote's yes. I went to Ms. Durham earlier in the year and asked 
her to look at this and consider an increase for at least the single senior applicant 
and she said she'd bring it up in the Fall; followed through on her promises and I 
appreciate it. My vote's yes. 

Mr. Banta: Based on the comments by the Director of Finance, the 
Commissioners present tonight I vote yes. 

Roll call reveals seven (7) yeas. Ordinance LC17-24 has been approved. 

Sarah Keifer stated these Public Hearings are conducted for the purpose of 
giving the citizens of Kent County the opportunity to present testimony on the 
application and ordinances that are before the Levy Court. Everyone will have an 
opportunity to speak. All statements will be made from the podium at the front of 
the room. For the record, please give your name and address. Copies of any 
written statements or exhibits used during the hearing should be provided to the 
Clerk of the Peace for identification and inclusion in the record for that item. 

For each application before the Levy Court, the President will introduce the 
application; 

The Levy Court will then receive testimony from all of those in favor; 

Testimony will then be received from those who may be opposed. 

After everyone has had an opportunity to speak, the hearing on the application 
will be closed and the Levy Court will then take what action it deems appropriate. 
Levy Court's decision will be based upon public hearing testimony received at 
this meeting as well as a recommendation report submitted to the Levy Court by 
The Regional Planning Commission. I would ask that that recommendation be 
included by reference in the permanent record of the meeting established by the 
Clerk of the Peace. 

The Public Hearing Notice of this meeting was published in the October 6, 2017 
edition of the Delaware State News. 

PETITION FOR CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL 

Mr. Hosfelt: 
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1. Application #C-17 -06; Applicant/Owner: Angus Park, LLC/Calvary 
Baptist Church of Dover; Zoning District/Proposed Use: Church/Retail 
Sales, Service & Parts of Farm Equipment; Area & Location!ID#: 6.0 + 
acres on the on the northeast comer of Victory Chapel Rd. (Co. Rd. 163 
Rd. 163) and Forrest Ave. (DE Rt. 8), west ofDover/WD-00-074.00-01-
48.00-000. 

Ms. Keifer: The first application before the Levy Court tonight is C-17-06; it's a 
Conditional Use Application for Retail sales of farm hardware and supplies. 
The site is just under six acres on the northeast comer of Victory Chapel Road 
and Route 8 west of Dover, outside the growth zone. The Planning Commission 
took testimony of this application at their October 5th meeting and at their October 
12th business meeting voted unanimously to recommend approval. It should be 
noted one of the conditions the Regional Planning Commission also 
recommended is that the applicant be permitted to display up to 12 pieces of 
equipment along Route 8. This comes with a recommendation for approval. I'm 
happy to answer any questions you might have. 

Mr. Buckson: That clarifies that it originally came with a recommendation for 
four; the RPC then enabled it to occur with 12? Am I reading that correct? 

Ms. Keifer: Staff recommended four because that was in keeping with some 
similar operations and Planning Commission recommended 12. 

Mr. Buckson: So in the motion, if this is supported, it will come with the 12 we 
don't have to identify ... 

Ms. Keifer: That depends on what the motion is. If it's 12 then it would be per 
the RPC recommendation, if it's something else it should be stated outright. 

Mr. Buckson: Fair enough, thank you. 

Public Hearing is Open on Application LC-17-06 

IN FAVOR 

Terry Greenleaf, 210 Morrisonville Road, Kirkwood, PA 17536: I'm the owner 
for Ag Industrial and Angus Park, the applicant for this. Maybe you guys are 
somewhat familiar with this, but we are New Holland Farm Equipment Dealers. I 
have four locations, Northeastern Pennsylvania and Southeastern Pennsylvania. 
We are trying to move into Delmarva. There's a large open point for New 
Holland Equipment Dealers. There's been one out of business in Smyrna for quite 
a few years now and there's not another dealer for another hour and 1/2- two 
hours south, so there's a lot of that equipment in this area. We already work with 
Dover Speedway, we provide equipment that they use and we've already 
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established some customer base here but we're just too far away from our Rising 
Sun, Maryland store to properly service the area so we're looking to move in here. 

Mr. Pepper: I notice here that limitations have been put on you as to how many 
pieces of equipment that you can display along Route 8. What types of 
equipment would you, other than tractors, what else would you want to display? 

Mr. Greenleaf: What we did at our other locations, we basically would have a 
tractor and maybe a piece ofhay equipment or something just for display that, 
you know, tastefully out in front. So people know what we do. It's kind of 
important to our business that there's something out there to make it look like 
we're in business. I know that there was concerns of that but we run a pretty clean 
outfit and it's something that's tastefully mowed and equipment's cycled all the 
time to have decent displays. We're not looking at sitting something right on the 
street or something but a little closer than the 7 5 feet would go a long ways for 
some visibility for us. 

Mr. Pepper: How many pieces of equipment would you, at your other locations, 
do you have out front on display and would limiting you to 12 hinder your 
business do you think? How do you feel about that? 

Mr. Greenleaf: On this particular location with the frontage on Route 8, I mean 
really as a compromise I think eight would really be suitable for us. It depends on 
our location. I have a location in Rising Sun that has a 1/4 mile road frontage and 
I have 30 pieces of equipment out there, but it just depends on what you have to 
work with. 

Mr. Pepper: But you could work with 12? 

Mr. Greenleaf: Yes, absolutely. 

Mr. Pepper: Thank you. 

Mr. Angel: Terry, there's 11 items on here that you have to comply with. Do you 
have any problems with those 11 items, A through K? 

Mr. Greenleaf: No, we've worked through all ofthem. We're okay. 

Mr. Angel: I know its Conditional Use and it has to be approved by the RPC and 
Staff recommends it .... When was the church vacated? I didn't know it was 
empty. 

Mr. Greenleaf: It's kind of sort of vacated. I think they still have some weddings 
and funerals and such there. My understanding, they've been trying to sell for 
almost 10 years. They're trying to consolidate into another church in town. I 
guess some loss of congregation, they're trying to consolidate. 
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Mr. Angel: I know they lost their pastor, he died. But this is the first I've heard 
that's why I wanted to ask. Thank you. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Can you tell us a little bit about your business, how many employees 
you think you'll have, what you'll be doing as far as that goes. 

Mr. Greenleaf: I would hope to build this to the size of some of our larger 
branches which average 12-15 employees. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Did I hear you correct, you would like to see at least eight pieces of 
equipment on the road frontage? 

Mr. Greenleaf: Permission for 12 would be great, I can make eight work if 12's 
heartburn for you. There's quite a bit of frontage there and if you look at that 
picture up there, that 7 5 foot setback goes clear back to that paved parking area so 
there's quite a bit of real estate to tastefully display something that isn't sitting 
right on the road. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Thank you. 

Mr. Sweeney: Mr. Greenleaf, what kind of equipment is it? 

Mr. Greenleaf: New Holland. 

Mr. Sweeney: So it's ... How big are your tractors? 

Mr. Greenleaf: New Holland makes up to pretty large tractors. Our specialty is 
normally 100 horse and under. We cater to the medium-sized and the small 
farms, week-end farmers, horse farmers, that's more of our ... 

Mr. Sweeney: Implements? 

Mr. Greenleaf: Implements, we do a lot ofhay equipment. We don't really get 
into tillage. We do work with residential; we sell skid steer loaders, zero-tum 
lawn mowers and such for ... 

Mr. Sweeney: So we're not going to see New Holland combines sitting out there? 

Mr. Greenleaf: I don't do combines, I don't do large tillage and I don't do big 
articulated tractors. 

Mr. Sweeney: Your frontage real estate is going to go away really quickly when 
you start using bigger pieces of equipment. 



M-17-190 

14 10/24117 

Mr. Greenleaf: No, if I was into that kind of equipment that facility wouldn't be 
suitable. 

Mr. Sweeney: You're looking to add on to the structure? 

Mr. Greenleaf: No, actually the main part of that structure is a steel building so 
we're looking to turn that into a partial service and partial display inside the 
existing structure. So there won't be any add-on. 

Mr. Sweeney: Okay, thank you. 

IN OPPOSITION- None 

Public Hearing is Closed on Application C-17-06 

Mr. Hosfelt: In accordance with the recommendations of the Regional Planning 
Commission and that ofMs. Keifer and her Staff I Move for conditional approval 
of Application C-17-06 with the following exception to Staff's recommendations: 
with regards to the limiting of storage and display of machinery I'd like to see that 
number be at eight (8) versus four (4); seconded by Mr. Sweeney. 

Mr. Angel: Well, Mr. Buckson and I, we were kind of wishing for 12 along that 
road, as long as it's not going to be gigantua. I think this is a business and we 
want to make sure we're sensitive to the business and farming community, so I 
was hoping to see at least 12 on there instead of eight. 

Mr. Hosfelt: I'm amenable to an amendment to the motion. I was trying to work 
out a compromise between what Staff thought was best for the area and what the 
proposed business center would like to have. 

Mr. Angel: Can I make a motion then to amend? 

Mr. Banta: He made the motion, I'll allow him to make the amendment you can 
second it, if you want to. If you don't want to ... 

Mr. Hosfelt: Yes, ifl could I'd like to amend the Motion previously made in 
accordance with Application C-17 -06 with the following exception to Staffs 
recommendations: renewing the number of 12 to those that can be displayed out 
front on Forrest Avenue; seconded by Mr. Angel. 

Roll call: 

Mr. Angel: Yes, reasons stated, RPC and Terry's wanting to have at least 12, I 
approve. Yes. 
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Mr. Buckson: Yes, no public opposition, reasons stated, look for a successful 
opportunity for you guys to make a positive impact out there, so yes. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Yes, based on Staffs recommendations, no opposition and the fact 
we're bringing a new employer to the area I vote yes. 

Mr. Howell: Yes, reasons stated. 

Mr. Pepper: Yes, all reasons previously stated plus this is a farming community 
out west of Dover. This will enhance the operations of a lot of farms out there 
and hopefully will let them remain farming. Yes. 

Mr. Sweeney: I kind of liked Mr. Hosfelt's attempt at a compromise but I can go 
with 12, so my vote's yes. No opposition, Staff and RPC recommendation, I vote 
yes. 

Mr. Banta: Its new business, new employees, certainly be a prosperous business. 
Based on the recommendation of Staff and RPC and the motion by Mr. Hosfelt, I 
vote yes. 

Roll call reveals seven (7) yeas. Application LC-17-06 has been approved. 

PETITION TO AMEND COMPREHENSIVE PLAN MAP AND ZONING 
MAP 

Mr. Buckson: 
1. Ordinance LC17-21, An Ordinance to amend the Comprehensive Plan 

Map Designation and the Official Zoning Map of Kent County, Delaware 
pursuant to the provisions of Kent County Code, Vol. II, Chapter 205 
Zoning, Article III, Section 205-8 and Section 205-9, and Article XXVIII 
(changes and amendments) effective December 01, 2000, as amended. 
(Ref Application#: CZ-17-11; Applicant & Owner: Walter Zettlemoyer, 
Trustee; Proposed Zoning District: BG (General Business); Area & 
Location/ID#: 5.7± acres on east side of Milford Neck Road (Co. Rd. 
120), approx. 524ft. east of Bay Road (DE Rt. 1), southeast of Frederica I 
MD-00-141. 00-0 1-3 3. 00-000) 

Ms. Keifer: The next application is Ordinance LC17-21. This is an application to 
amend the Zoning Map and the Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map. The 
site is currently zoned Industrial/IG. The proposal is to rezone it to BG/General 
Business. The site is just under six (6) acres on the east side of Milford Neck 
Road east of Route 1, southeast of Frederica. The Planning Commission took 
testimony at their October 5th meeting and at their October 12th business meeting 
voted to recommend approval of the rezoning citing that the proposal comports 
with the character of the area as its transitioning and that the use of the property 
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for industrial purposes is limited. Again this comes with a recommendation for 
approval. I am happy to answer any questions you might have. 

QUESTIONS 

Mr. Banta: Ms. Keifer, just so I get it absolutely clear, this is a down-zoning, 
correct? 

Ms. Keifer: It is often characterized as such. There both intensive zoning 
districts. 

Mr. Banta: There's a big difference between IG and BG, so okay. Just for 
clarification. Thank you. 

Mr. Buckson: Just one, Ms. Keifer, and if not I can ask the applicant. Can you 
explain the relationship with the entrance of this property, currently now and 
possibly if you know how it would look if it was developed. 

Ms. Keifer: I don't know how it would be designed. My understanding is, 
actually is as part of the public improvements going on in the area Del-DOT 
ensured that he would have right-of-way and I believe have proposed to construct 
an entrance for him. 

Public Hearing is Open on Ordinance LC17-21 

Walter Zettlemoyer, 1212 Rising Sun Road, Camden, DE 19934: The parcel of 
property was 6.8 acres at one time. The State of Delaware by eminent domain 
took 1.10 of an acre off. In the process of doing that they also took off the 
industrial part of the property which was a 40 x 100 warehouse. Presently 
acreage limits and capabilities are almost nonexistent in industrial. I looked for 
three years for an industrial site to replace it and found none. The entrance way if 
you're coming off will be a commercial entrance the State of Delaware's putting 
in off the road going back to the sewer plant. That's where there will be a 
commercial entrance put in by the State of Delaware. 

IN OPPOSITION- None 

Public Hearing is Closed on Ordinance LC17-21 

Mr. Buckson: I'd like to make a Motion that we approve Ordinance LC17-21 
amending the Zoning Map Comprehensive Plan from IG (General Industrial) to 
BG (General Business)/ Highway Commercial located outside the Growth Zone 
Overlay District. This is based on Exhibit A -the Staff Recommendation Report 
and Exhibit B- Public Hearing Testimony 2017; also the findings of fact a, band 
c listed in your packet. Also in keeping with re-zonings that I typically review 
and then approve, the proximity to the infrastructure that's there, the overpass, the 
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ability to petition for sewer, of course that'll be on the property and the property 
owner; emergency services, clearly it's located in an area that's conducive to 
economic development right now. This location is very limited in its impact to 
the neighbors which was important and continues to be important. And then 
finally just a quick statement that we continue to evolve in the Comprehensive 
Plan, we continue to review. There will be public comments made that impact not 
just his area but other areas through-out the community, or the County and so I'd 
encourage folks interested in this re-zoning or this type of re-zoning to provide 
feedback to the Staff when they have their public hearings or online. Long story 
short is my motion was to approve based on those comments; seconded by Mr. 
Pepper. 

Roll call: 

Mr. Angel: Yes, and my deliberations too; I want to make sure that commercial 
does drive in that area and because there's change to support additional 
commercial development I vote yes and reasons stated by Regional Planning 
Commission, yes. 

Mr. Buckson: Yes, per my comments. 

Mr. Hosfelt: I vote yes based on the comments already on the record. 

Mr. Howell: Yes for reasons stated. 

Mr. Pepper: Yes, I hate to see industrial property be down-zoned because 
industrial property is so difficult to get established in the County however in this 
area, the nature of it is changing so I think this would be a good fit for the area, 
especially once the area is built out and I think it will be a good fit for the County, 
so yes. 

Mr. Sweeney: During the last property that was in front of Levy Court that was in 
the general area of the DE Turf I was pretty adamant that I would like to see the 
Comprehensive Plan completed before we move forwarded with any more 
increases to the zoning. However, this is technically a decrease to zoning so I, 
based on the Staff and RPC recommendations, as well as comments that I heard 
before, I vote yes. 

Mr. Banta: Yes, based on the comments by the Regional Planning Commission, 
more importantly the comments by Mr. Buckson, to keep in mind that those of 
you that are here and those of you that are at home that are watching that the 
Comprehensive Plan is moving down the line. It will be several months before 
it's finished and there's going to be a lot of public hearings so people need to 
participate in that to direct how their County wants to look 10, 15, 20 years from 
now. But anyway, based on that, I vote yes. 
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Roll call reveals seven (7) yeas. Ordinance LC17-21 has been approved. 

PETITIONS FOR CONITIONAL USE REQUIRING SITE PLAN 
APPROVAL 

Mr. Banta: 
1. Application #/Name: CS-17-03/Wilson, George E. Jr.; Applicant/ 

Owner: Eco-Site, Inc. % Tracy White I George E. Wilson, Jr. Trustee; 
Zoning District I Proposed Use: IG (General Industrial) & AC 
(Agricultural Conservation) I Telecommunications Tower; Area & 
Location I ID#: 222.84 +acres on the east side of Hurd Rd. (Co. Rd. 326), 
approx. 370' south of Dutch Neck Rd. (Co. Rd. 83), and on the south side 
ofDutch Neck Rd. (Co. Rd. 83), approx. 459' east of Hurd Rd. (Co. Rd. 
326), east of Smyrna 

Ms. Keifer: The next application is CS-17-03; it's a Conditional Use Site Plan for 
a Telecommunications Tower. The site is zoned by IG (General Industrial) and 
AC (Agricultural Conservation). The site is more than 200 acres on the east side 
of Hurd Road, south of Dutch Neck Road, east of Smyrna. The Regional 
Planning Commission took testimony at their October 5th hearing and at their 
October 1ih business meeting voted unanimously to recommend approval. I'm 
happy to take any questions you might have. 

Questions -None 

Public Hearing is Open on Application CS-17-03 

IN FAVOR 

Jonathan Jordan, T-Mobile: I am the attorney for the applicant. I have with me 
a civil engineer, a radio frequency engineer and a site acquisitions specialist. This 
is the third time I've been in front of Levy Court in the last six months for 
Telecom so I don't think I want to, or I don't think you want me to go through 
everything in any kind of detail. I don't believe there's any opposition. I've 
submitted exhibited binders that go into great detail about the safety and the 
compliance with all the requirements and the fact that we need to improve our 
signal and our capacity in this area. The tower's located at least a 1000 feet from 
any property line. It looks just like a windmill so I don't think it's going to bother 
anybody. So all that being the case, unless there's some opponents in the 
audience, I think I'd just like to see if the board has any questions. 

IN OPPOSITION- None 

Public Hearing is Closed on Application CS-17-03 
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Mr. Banta: I Move we approve Application CS-17-03, the George E. Wilson, Jr., 
as applied, with no further questions or comments, I think it's a good location; I 
visited the site myself, so that's my motion; seconded by Mr. Angel. 

Roll call: 

Mr. Angel: Yes, for all reasons stated, as well as I sit on the governing board for 
NAACO for telecommunications and Vice President of that board and in keeping 
with what I always vote for, the landlines are disappearing at an alarming rate, we 
need to make sure that airways are out there so we can keep telecommunications 
movmg, so my answers yes. 

Mr. Banta: Yes. 

Mr. Buckson: Normally we have any ... when the motions made then we have any 
further comments, so real quick. And of course it's a conversation I've had 
frequently. This thing meets all existing requirements currently on the books for 
Kent County. There is no public opposition whatsoever. Long gone is any 
evidence that these towers produce any type of concerns. So I think we are 
fairly and adequately protecting the public without the necessity to hold a public 
hearing for this particular type of application. And so I just want to continue to 
encourage us to, I know I talked to Ms. Keifer, I just want to publicly state for 
the record that we need to continue to move in a direction where so long as all 
those checks are made prior to, it kind of eliminates any need ... I mean I don't 
know what I would ask for. Then we should do this administratively and save 
some of the time. With that, I support the application based on no public 
opposition and some of the things I just said. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Yes, based on the recommendations of Staff and the RPC I vote yes. 

Mr. Howell: Yes, reasons stated. 

Mr. Sweeney: Yes, for all reasons stated. 

Mr. Pepper: Yes, for all reasons stated and this is one of the areas where 
hardwired landlines are disappearing from. Based on that and everything already 
stated my vote is yes also. 

Roll call reveals seven (7) yeas. Application CS-17 -03 has been approved. 

Mr. Howell: 
1. Application #/Name: CS-17-09 I Jomak Mini Storage; Applicant & 

Owner: Jomak Properties, LLC; Zoning District I Proposed Use: BG 
(General Business) I Mini-Warehouses; Area & Location I ID #: 
8.0253± acres on west side of South DuPont Hwy. (US Rt. 13) and east 
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side of Collison Dr., 300+ ft. north of Hopkins Cemetery Road (Co. Rd. 
289), north ofHarrington/MN-00-160.00-01-09.00-000 

Ms. Keifer: Application CS-17-09 is an application, Conditional Use Site Plan 
Application for mini-storage. Site is just over 8 acres on the west side of Route 
13 east side of Collison Drive, north of Hopkins Cemetery Road, just north of 
Harrington; located outside the growth zone. The Regional Planning Commission 
took testimony at their October 5th hearing; at their October 12th business meeting 
voted unanimously to recommend approval. It should be noted there were two 
waivers requested as part of this application; one was to waive in its entirety the 
frontage sidewalk. The Regional Planning Commission recommended approval 
of that although the applicant is also on record saying that Del-dot had offered a 
fee in lieu option on their end. The second waiver was from the tree planting 
requirements. The applicant had requested a total waiver from that requirement. 
The Planning Commission is recommending denial of that waiver. But overall 
the application comes with a recommendation for approval. I'm happy to answer 
any questions you might have. 

QUESTIONS- None 

Public Hearing is Open on Application CS-17-09 

IN FAVOR 

Jamie Sechler, Davis, Bowen & Friedel, Inc., 1 Park Avenue, Milford, DE: This 
property was before you guys about three months ago to re-zone from Agriculture 
to BG and like we discussed then we are back in front of you again for mini
storage. We are proposing 68,400 square feet of mini-storage with the associated 
parking, entrance, etc. off of Hopkins Cemetery. The one thing I do want to 
address is the sidewalk. We did meet with Del-DOT and based on the proximity 
of sidewalks from Harrington, Dover, etc. they are willing to do the fee in lieu of 
instead of putting sidewalks. There's really no connectivity in that area. I 
understand the Staff's recommendation on that, because there are some properties 
that are zoned similar to their developed; more than likely the sidewalk will need 
to be replaced so Del-DOT would prefer to do the fee in lieu of and that way the 
fee's there and whenever adjacent properties are developed the monies there to 
extend the sidewalk or shared use path. We will be giving up 15 foot easement so 
that the property's there for them to build the infrastructure at that time. The 
other waiver that we were asking for was from the Code 187-74D. It requires one 
tree for every 3000 square feet of site area which equates to 117 trees and you 
know based on the caliber of trees that are required, which is I think is 1 Yz" to 2" 
it's around $400.00 per tree or around $45,000.00 for infrastructure to build that 
so it just, on the economic side of mini-storage and whatever we were asking for 
the waiver for that as well. I know RPC denied it but we are still trying to equate 
to that, so. With that, I guess if anyone has any questions I'd be happy to answer 
them. 
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Mr. Buckson: I don't know if it's a specific question for you; obviously for Staff. 
I read the request for a waiver, I understand that the ... I looked into it originally 
because you're planting so many trees for the buffering but of course that's a 
separate requirement. So this is different. And then I looked at it and said, well 
then it's just not likely it's $300.00 or $400.00 a tree, so I know you can't price 
the tree, but is he accurate in stating the 1 W' ... ? 

Ms. Keifer: Yeah, it ranges between 1 to 2 calipers depending on the tree. 

Mr. Buckson: I would agree that, if that number holds true, that's a big number. I 
don't know if there's any relief because I'm not necessarily stating that we should 
agree to a waiver because the flat piece ofland there's actually no trees at all 
on that land other than the buffering that will occur, correct, on the back side? 

Mr. Sechler: That is correct, yes. 

Mr. Buckson: So I don't know what I'm saying other than I get what you're 
saying. I don't know that we got relief for you but I'm surprised that it's that 
expensive. 

Ms. Keifer: I'm not a landscaper; I can't speak to the cost of the trees. I can tell 
you that the County adopted these regulations in 2003 and it's routinely been 
implemented. It is a rare circumstance for any kind of waiver is considered, 
particularly with a vacant site. 

Mr. Sechler: May I say something? For the trees, they're around $175.00 to 
$225.00 a tree, typically it's double that to get them planted so that's a standard 
number we're seeing in today's world. But, I mean, that's just. .. 

Mr. Buckson: Sometimes it's not easy but it makes sense when you consider 
waiving a sidewalk in the middle of nowhere. It's a challenge to waive trees 
because obviously the trees and what we're trying to do ... 

Mr. Sechler: Technically with the fee in lieu of it's really not waiving, he's still 
paying for it he's just not really installing it because per Del-DOT, it's their fee in 
lieu of is around $30,000.00 to $40,000.00 as well. So, he's actually paying to 
install it he's just not installing it. 

Mr. Buckson: I don't want to go back and forth. You're correct and I support 
that. Maybe it was a bad analogy or explanation that I was trying to explain and 
I'm okay with that one. Thanks. 

Mr. Howell: Ms. Keifer, you didn't specify what kind of trees, did you? You just 
talk more about the size? 
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Ms. Keifer: No, Chapter 187, the subdivision Land Development Chapter has a 
whole host of options. We don't tell you exactly what to plant. We give you the 
basic sizes. 

Mr. Howell: Okay. 

Mr. Banta: I just have one question about these trees. The number you gave us, I 
think was $45,000.00? 

Mr. Sechler: Well, yeah, per you Code, it's one tree for every 3000 square feet 
which equates to 117 trees. So, 117 times $400.00 is somewhere in the 
$44,000.00 - $45,000.00 range. 

Mr. Banta: Personally I think that is a challenge. I would yield to others to make 
comments about that. Maybe Staff... Ms. Keifer, were we aware that the cost of 
these trees was going to be $45,000? Or is that an erroneous number? I mean no 
disrespect to the applicant but is that an erroneous number or is that what it is? 

Ms. Keifer: Again, I don't price out installation oflandscape plants. But I would 
reiterate these have been in effect since 2003 and have routinely been enforced. 
So, it's whatever effect it's having on this project it's had on every other project 
that's been done. 

Mr. Banta: You're right and it's important we don't change mid-stream. 

Mr. Angel: I was just going to make a comment that maybe we need to go back 
and revisit this 2003 ordinance because this actually hurts the small business. I 
know maybe it's the cost of doing business but that seems like an awful amount 
of money for trees for a storage center. With the wind that we just had last night I 
was cutting trees all day to today just so I could get here. I could just imagine if 
this fell on storage units out there, anyway ... Just seems that we need to revisit 
that. Can we get that put on the agenda at some point? 

Mr. Banta: Mr. Petit de Mange, would you look at that, at a time appropriate on 
the agenda? 

Mr. Petit de Mange: If I would comment on that. I'm not sure what the total 
project budget is but usually the landscaping is a small portion of the total project 
budget. There was a period of time when the County didn't have any real 
landscape requirements and there was a cry for this and we developed these 
ordinances in 2003 and they've stood the test of time. I think they've yielded 
better development because of it. We have a balance between built environment 
and paved surfaces and things like that. Things like trees and shade and color and 
attractiveness. You have to understand that this was not viewed back then when 
it was developed and it hasn't been viewed since then as a penalty to 
development. It was to balance the built environment and to incorporate it and 
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make it pleasant places to be. I would strongly urge the Commissioners not to 
alter it just based on one application coming before you complaining about the 
price of trees. I think, in all due respect, they can shop this. Hopefully they have 
and got the best prices but as Sarah, Director Sarah Keifer has mentioned, the tree 
planting ordinance has a whole menu of options for people to choose from and the 
landscape designer or whoever it is has a lot of flexibility. They don't have to 
pick the most expensive ornamental trees and the most expensive hardwood trees 
to put in their landscape. It was developed for good reasons and it was fully 
endorsed back then. I would caution you from turning away from that now. But 
if the Commissioners want to have a discussion we will have it on for a 
committee meeting obviously. Thank you. 

Mr. Banta: Thank you Mr. Petit de Mange. We will talk about that. 

Mr. Sechler: May I make one more comment? If there isn't a waiver for possibly 
a reduction or removal is there possibly a waiver for, to plant a smaller caliper 
tree? You know, maybe like a 1" tree. You know, 'because I mean a 2" caliper 
tree's a shorter height, you're talking about an 8- 10 foot tree and you know that 
that's where the ... That's just a thought. I don't know ... You know ... I just ... 
From this side, you know, just a compromise, that's an option. 

Mr. Banta: Well, I don't know that we're in a position to change the ordinance at 
this time the way it's stated so I sympathize with your concern. I understand that. 
It's what is called the cost of doing business. There is little or nothing we can do 
at this juncture to change that. Okay? Thank you. 

IN OPPOSITION- None 

Public Hearing is Closed on Application CS-17-09 

Mr. Howell: I will say candidly that I'm not real comfortable with this tree 
requirement. I'm going to make this motion anyway and encourage everybody to 
approve it but I just don't understand the rationale behind that so I think that 
needs to be looked at in the future. I don't know where he went but hopefully that 
will be some sort of encouragement to him. In the meantime, I will Move that we 
approve CS-17-09, the Jomak Mini-Storage, the owner is Jomak Properties, LLC 
and the area and location is 8.025 +/-acres on west side of South DuPont 
Highway and east side of Collison Drive, 300 feet north ofHopkins Cemetery 
Road north of Harrington. Should stipulate to as part of this motion that two 
requests were made, they've already been discussed. I just wanted to make sure 
it's part of the record, but the sidewalk requirement has been a deal that's been 
worked out with Del-DOT so we'll let that slide, that was approved. As I alluded 
to just a moment ago the tree planting requirement is denied. I don't think it's as 
hopeless as it appears but that is my motion; seconded by Mr. Buckson (with 
clarification). 
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Mr. Buckson: I just want to be clear, Commissioner Howell, or maybe ask Ms. 
Keifer, I think it has to be included that we agree to the fee in lieu, of I think is the 
technical wording that needs to be included in this. 

Ms. Keifer: It would be helpful for Staff if the motion included, not just the 
sidewalk waiver but with the proviso that they do participate in Del-DOT's fee in 
lieu program and evidence of that participation is provided to us prior to, it could 
be building permit. 

Mr. Howell: So, does that satisfy what you're saying? Because in addition to that 
motion I guess this is kind of unorthodox but we, the agreement was the fee in 
lieu of the sidewalk, in other words it was delayed, right? And you said the 
provision ofDel-DOT, is that sufficient? 

Ms. Keifer: The agreement with Del-DOT will be provided to us is what we 
would ask. 

Mr. Howell: Provided Del-DOT's agreement is given to you, okay, that's my 
motion. 

Mr. Banta: You need to mention the trees; I need to get clarification of what you 
said about the trees. 

Mr. Howell: Well, the tree planting requirement in non-woodlands waiver was 
denied. So I was thinking we would have to stick with this motion as it is. But I 
think like I was implicating earlier there's a lot more hope, that it's not quite as 
drastic as you think. But I think this will work as stated. 

Mr. Banta: But you're not changing at this moment? 

Mr. Howell: No. 

Mr. Banta: Thank you. 

Mr. Buckson: Follow up with a second to that. 

Roll call: 

Mr. Angel: Yes, reasons stated and RPC and Staff recommendations. 

Mr. Buckson: Yes for all reasons stated to include the comments most recently 
made by Ms. Keifer regarding how the sidewalk fee in lieu of program and 
demonstration of participation in the program would occur. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Yes, based on the information provided and the recommendation of 
bother Staff and the RPC. 
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Mr. Howell: Yes, reasons stated. 

Mr. Pepper: Yes, reasons stated. 

Mr. Sweeney: Yes, reasons stated. 

Mr. Banta: Yes, for all reasons stated. 

Roll call reveals seven (7) yeas. Application CS-17-09 has been approved. 

AMENDMENTS TO THE KENT COUNTY CODE 
VOLUME II, CHAPTER 205, ZONING 

Mr. Buckson/Mr. Angel: 

10/24/17 

1. Ordinance LC17-17: Impervious Cover. An Ordinance to amend Kent 
County Code, Vol. II, Chapter 205, Zoning, as amended by revising 
Article V, AC- Agricultural Conservation District, §205-51, Coverage; 
Article VI, AR -Agricultural Residential District, §205-67, Coverage; 
Appendix 205:Al, Agricultural Conservation Matrix; and Appendix 
205:A2, Agricultural Residential Matrix in order to increase the permitted 
impervious coverage for AC and AR zoned properties outside of the 
Growth Zone Overlay District from 20 percent to 25 percent. 

Ms. Keifer: The next item is Ordinance LC17-17 which addresses impervious 
cover. The ordinance as its drafted, calls for the impervious cover limitation for 
AC and AR zoned properties located outside of the growth zone, to be increased 
from 20% impervious cover to 25% impervious cover. The Regional Planning 
Commission took testimony on this ordinance at their September ih hearing, at 
their October 12th business meeting they voted to recommend denial. They 
expressed concern about the increased impervious cover on water quality, long
term. I am happy to answer any questions you might have. 

QUESTIONS -None 

Public Hearing is Open on Ordinance LC17-17 

David Salmon, 98 Corbins Close, Wyoming, DE: Back in June my wife and I 
made application to put a screen porch on the back of our deck, 370 square feet of 
roof space. Betsy, congratulations but you're the one that called me with the bad 
news, that we had exceeded our impervious structure and we go, what the heck is 
that? And she proceeded to tell me that we were at, with this improvement that 
we would be at 21 and a half percent. Now, to me it became more of a problem ... 
it became more of the principle than a problem. My wife and I are getting up 
there. Mr. Angel said he graduated in '71; I graduated in '77. I understand. I 
can't tell you the last time I went to the skin doctor and didn't have something 
that didn't have to be removed, frozen or burnt off. But being outside is, in the 
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summer time is not conducive to our health, but we like to be outside. So I 
approached Mr. Pepper and Mr. Buckson about this issue and ... My question is, 
you've got a lot of smart people downstairs here, why can't there be ... You have 
an administrative variance for setbacks. Why can't you have an administrative 
variance for impervious structure? Where I live to the right of my house is a 
pond. Behind my house is Fifer Orchards. Thirty feet between Fifer Orchards 
and my home is the community open space which will never be developed. But 
somebody could have looked at that and said there's plenty of stormwater runoff 
here. Personally, I just think that you could streamline a process, you could make 
this a lot easier on folks if you gave somebody downstairs the ability and the 
opportunity to go, you need to take this to Levy Court or I think we can cover 
this, as you do with the administrative variance on the setback rule. We could go 
through the process of the 60 day thing, applying for the variance, coming up here 
and being approved or denied and then you get the tax revenue from my new 
screen porch. Or I put on Sun Setter Awnings and there's no tax revenue. I've 
talked to a lot of people. Terry's a neighbor of my mother, bless your heart. And 
she keeps asking me, how's it going, how's it going. This is the most frustrating 
thing I've been through in my life. I wanted to do the right thing. I wanted to 
apply for a building permit and there's been a lot of people that I've expressed 
this frustration to and they've said, why did you apply for a building permit? 
Because it's the right thing to do. I'm not just here for myself, but there's got to 
be plenty of other folks in this County that are within 1 or 2 % of 
impervious structure from improving their homes and increasing the coffers, or 
the income, the revenue to Levy Court, the County that this could be done in four 
or five days versus a 60 day process. Thank you for your time. I appreciate it. 

Mr. Banta: We appreciate you being here. I just want to share with you my 
personal opinion. It has nothing to do with you. I think you've done probably an 
outstanding job and you will do one. The concern I have is that, when you look 
around the County overall, we've got a number of stormwater management ponds 
some of which work very effectively. Mr. Buckson, the head of the program and 
got those straightened out, he got them cleaned up. Now some of them are 
working, we have a lot that aren't working. The more soil and the more land that 
becomes impervious, my deepest concern is, down the road 5, 10, 15 years, I 
won't probably be around but the issue becomes what are we going to do with 
that water? What are we going to do with all that soil that's now being covered 
with concrete, asphalt, not necessarily stones, with stone it would be pervious, but 
it's impervious soil so not looking at today, looking at the future I just feel 
uncomfortable moving this to 25% versus the 20 when we do have a procedure 
through the Board of Adjustment. In many cases they do approve, some cases 
they don't. But I think you have a good case, you're being honest; you're trying 
to do the job right. I have a lot of respect for that. But you have to understand, I 
can't speak for Levy Court, but I just think that the more soil that we cover over 
with concrete and asphalt or buildings it's just that much more water that we have 
to deal with. That's my problem. 
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Mr. Salmon: Mr. Banta I appreciate your opinion on that, however as I explained 
to Betsy that where the screen porch was going was already covered by a deck. 
That deck was there when we built the house in 2006. We're not covering 
anything new. We used Trex and the Trex is butted up against each other. That 
was a more impervious structure than what we have now because now we have 
the Trex with the hidden fasteners which allows water to permeate. We are just 
covering an existing deck that was impervious. Now the deck's pervious. That's 
the frustration. I could see this in my mind. This should be a no brainer. We are 
making this more pervious than not. Where we live there's sand, the soil beneath 
the house is sand. We've got beautiful drainage. My well's 50' deep; Old Mill 
Acres it was 240 feet deep. I know I'm probably wasting your time. 

Mr. Banta: No, we're glad to hear it. 

Mr. Salmon: These are the frustrations, it's not one stamp fits all here. Like I 
said, you've got really smart people downstairs that you pay a lot of money to that 
can look at this and go this is the watershed that he's in; this is what the soil 
drains off at. He's putting a screen deck on an existing deck or a screen porch on 
an existing deck. You know, this has just been the most frustrating thing. 

Mr. Banta: I get your frustration. I understand that. You also understand not just 
with this ordinance but any other ordinance, when we make a change whether it 
be dramatic or nondramatic the issue is it covers 180,000 people. 

Mr. Salmon: I understand, sir. 

Mr. Banta: It's not just you; you've got to take you out ofthe equation. You 
make an excellent pitch. I understand completely what you were saying. I just 
think that we need to be very cautious as we keep changing ordinances either up 
or down for certain situations. With that I'll just keep from saying anything else. 

Mr. Angel: This is why administratively this should have been gone through 
administration instead of through us. This is a common sense issue, period. This 
makes us frustrated too when we hear these kind of arguments because of the lack 
of time and what we have to go through. The fact is that we're not asking for a 
big piece of the pie but ... I was always told that our aquifer the water that comes 
through there comes out of New Jersey underneath; that's probably the most 
polluted State in the Union. So I just have a hard time ... And I feel for you too 
because I understand what you're trying to say but this is an individual case; 
this should be done administratively based on criteria that's set forth and 
hopefully we can do that. It just comes down to common sense for me. 

IN OPPOSITION 

Andrea Kreiner, 207 Concord Road, Dover, DE: I've worked for 29 years in 
both the environmental fields; 12 years at DNREC managing the Pollution 
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Prevention Program, four years as Governor Minner's Environment and Land Use 
Policy Advisor and for the past 13 years working with businesses and 
governments and other organizations on environmental and sustainability issues. 
The reason we limit impervious cover is both the stormwater management and a 
drinking water quantity issue. All of Kent County's water supply is from our 
aquifers. One reason we're able to have a higher level of impervious cover in the 
growth zone is that it's balanced with the greater ability for water to percolate 
through to the ground outside the growth zone. The research has shown that for a 
healthy watershed you can have at most 25% impervious cover overall for the 
watershed. If you increase the impervious cover to 25% outside the growth zone 
you will be well above that for most, if not all, of our watersheds. We need to 
look at not just the individual basis but the cumulative effect of each of these 
changes on our ability to manage our water, both for drinking and for stormwater. 
You know, individual needs for higher impervious cover outside the growth zone 
are currently handled on an individual basis perhaps we need to look at it in an 
administrative way to deal with that. This change goes beyond that; this change 
changes the base level that we're working from. So I strongly urge you to 
consider the implications of this proposed change on both our ability to manage 
stormwater and protect the future of our water supplies. Thank you. I'll 
take any questions. 

Mr. Howell: Ma'am do you think ... What this really boils down to is the 25%, 
okay. Is 25% going to be that, really empirically verifiable to be detrimental, 
particularly in view of the fact he already has a structure over, that he's just going 
to cover? 

Ms. Kreiner: For one house? No. Cumulatively raising that bar for the County ... 
Okay, right now the County has a balance. We have a higher level of 
impervious cover in our growth zone and a lower level outside the growth zone. 
If we say, and evidence shows that for a healthy watershed you want 25% 
covered, there's detriment shown between 25-30%. If you increase a lower level 
up to 25 you're obviously going to be over 25 for our watersheds and you're 
going to impair our watersheds and that's both in our ability to manage 
stormwater and to provide drinking water into the future. So for one house, yes 
perhaps you look at an administrative change in order to how you process these, 
but you don't change the base ordinance and the base level. 

Public Hearing is Closed on Ordinance LC17 -17 

Mr. Buckson: I think I'll take you through a little bit of a history on this. If you 
raise this in some percentage of some factor there's no question. If you lowered it 
by 111 Oth of 1% there would be a positive impact. So I mean yeah, I'm not going 
to debate with you on those types of issues. What I'm going to tell you is when I 
looked into this situation I looked at the Board of Adjustment and their history 
over the last couple of years and I saw 15 or so applicants that typically would fit 
this norm and providing relief for those individuals, it came out to be between 20 
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and 25%. So when we're looking at these issues here over the last two years, if 
you look at... And then I said what are our competitors doing? And I say 
competitors; I mean what are the people, jurisdictions similarly situated, what 
does Sussex County do? Well they don't have one. They don't have one. Now 
I'm not saying that's a good idea. But I'm saying we're getting beat over the 
head by saying we've got to save the world or something because we're moving 
20 to 25 when Sussex doesn't have any and New Castle County is all over the 
place. Some places they restrict the heck out of it and other places it's open 
season, it's everything. Then you go locally here and again, we're still restrictive. 
If we moved it from 20 to 25 we would still be very competitive in a restrictive 
nature. Related to our impervious cover ordinance, okay I would offer up a 
compromise. The average I got from the last couple of years was around 23. You 
want to go to 23, we'll go to 23. You know, I'm dead serious, I'm not joking. 
We can go to 23 and that will provide relief for, over the past history several 
individuals, as you noticed there's one here tonight, that are a very small 
percentage. When I look at that ... And in the packet, finally because I don't want 
to be wrong on this, I don't, clearly I've been here every step of the way making 
changes to the growth zone and outside the growth zone to protect the 
environment and we have put in tools and measures that have benefitted our water 
resources and the way we've limited or restricted development. This is not for 
commercial development at all; it's strictly for residential. When I talk about 
these things when you look at the studies that were presented to us, that weren't 
apples to apples which is typical in government. Opposition shows up and 
inundates you with information that at the end of the day isn't even close to being 
relevant to what you're doing. I tried to digest some of that stuff. At the end of 
the day I just called some folks who knew exactly what they were talking about 
and said you know what are we getting at here? So I was honest with you. 
You're moving it up. I'm arguing that we have put in place and you can find in 
those studies where you can use other tools that we have implemented to protect 
our resources. So moving this up, let's say to 23 as a sort of compromise doesn't 
create a catastrophic event, I would argue to you and does create a constituent 
friendly opportunity for homeowners to be able to expand however slightly. 
That's where I am. That's why I support it. I'll be happy to listen to anybody. I 
need to make a motion though first, right. That's where we are with all that 
rambling I need to make a motion now. Correct, is that where we are right now? 
We are not in the comments phase, right? 

Mr. Banta: We have the authority to discuss it. 

Mr. Buckson: So let's discuss first, right before I make my motion, is that fair? 

Mr. Banta: Let me understand you correctly. I don't know that I would be 
opposed to 23 and the only reason I won't be is because this doesn't show any 
partiality; shows general common sense for the entire County. Because as we sit 
up here, as you have for quite a number of years as well, it's important that 
whatever we do it affects 180,000 people. I mean, our entire Kent County is 
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controlled by what we do. To make a mistake would just be a tremendous error 
on our behalf if we did that. If you feel comfortable at a compromise of23, 
although it's not something that I feel really great about but I do feel that it shows 
we're willing to work together and show the community and the County that we 
are looking out for their wellbeing. So, with that being said whenever the motion 
is made at 23 I'd be prepared to support that. 

Mr. Buckson: Not a random number; it comes from a rather educated synopsis of 
what we were looking at over the past two years I guess, reviewing some of the 
files of the applications. So there you go; any other comments? 

Mr. Sweeney: Well I'm going to vote in favor of this. I'm really wondering 
though are we going to have to come back and look at this again because, I'm just 
wondering if the wording of this is as good as it could be. There's a 20% 
prevision and all we're seeing right now is that a constituent's getting screwed; 
he's being limited. You know there's a difference between being conservative 
and being farcical. And I don't see why we can't have some provision in here 
that we can keep 20 as the baseline but also stipulate that Levy Court can make 
exceptions. He needs to be an exception. 

Mr. Buckson: Again, I don't want to be wrong in my mind because I failed to 
properly educate myself. When I go against a very educated opinion such as the 
one just presented to us, a fair presentation of why we shouldn't, and I don't agree 
I want to be as educated as I can be. So let me explain to you the problem that 
Ms. Keifer explained to me today. It's our duty to set a bar, a number that their 
staff then adheres to. And ifthere needs to be an administrative exception then it 
should be for something quirky not just that it was now 23.6 instead of the 23. If 
we want it to be 24 we should move it to 24. I listened to it; I tried not to agree 
with it and I said you know what, I think she's got me there. It is what it is. 
Because we're asking her to decide 23.6 is good but 23.7 isn't; or because I called 
its good or because you called it isn't. You had me, I mean I was like, you know I 
don't like it, I'd really like you to just yeah, agree with me whenever I call you. It 
was okay. I get it. So that answered the issue of why this administrative one, if 
we make an administrative exception for quirky do we have that already in place 
or should we ... I think we're getting ahead of ourselves. Let me talk about that 
later then. Okay, that's the next ordinance as you're aware. So let's stick to this 
one. We have to set a number that's why I chose the 23; we can talk about a 
potential administrative situation after that, so that'll be fair, that'll answer your 
question I guess. I'm prepared to make a motion if that's a ... 

Mr. Angel: Well, I was hoping we could still keep the 5%. You know, make it 
23 but for a possible up to 25. I think the gentleman there says he needs an extra 
5%? 

Mr. Buckson: No, he doesn't need that; he's way under that. 
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Mr. Angel: Well, anyway I want to remind you all, the ones that were on the 
board probably five years ago? Four years ago? And I came back from NAACO 
I told you that the Federal Government was trying to navigate the waters of the 
U.S. which means water running off your gutter, coming down on your land, 
going to the street was going to be government imposed. You had rules, 
regulations for that water to run. Which is very ridiculous. So that's when I 
brought up impervious also at that time. That's why I was hoping that we can at 
least have a plus or minus something in here to set the bar a little higher for the 
gentleman that has an existing issue. But are we going to start saying every home 
now that we say can be built has to have impervious cover so much on their lot 
they can't build it? I mean I don't want to get to this point where it's so sticky 
that we don't, we hinder what we're trying to do, too. I'd just like to see us make 
sure that individually and administratively this could be handled without coming 
before us. I just think the plus up to 25% would do that. If 23 is going to be the 
bar then so be it but I just hate for us to get into regulatory positioning. 

Mr. Buckson: One of the things you have to educate yourself on is what President 
Banta correctly pointed out. That is much as ... And again this isn't specific to the 
applicant who was here talking before us tonight. That kind of triggered me to 
look into the situation to see if there was anything that was relevant as far as 
making an adjustment. The keys for me were, I looked at what the Board of 
Adjustment had been doing and I looked at what other surrounding areas had been 
doing and that triggered me to say yeah, there's an adjustment that can be made. 
Probably similar to what was done when we looked at the Senior Citizen thing. 
You know you just didn't do it because one applicant showed up and said, do it, 
right? You looked into it, maybe because of that. The concern is if you move it 
to 25 it doesn't just apply to ... We can't. I tried. Trust me. I wanted to say that 
it was specific to one acre lots. I wanted one acre lots, basically that. But we lost 
the lawsuit, gentleman trying to protect what ... the wellheads? This exact 
situation where we tried to protect our resources ... Was it related to that or am I 
off? 

Ms. Keifer: The Uniformity Clause goes back to Farmers for Fairness, the 
original. 

Mr. Buckson: So they won a lawsuit saying we can't, you can't regulate it to one 
acre it has to be, if it's going to apply it's going to apply outside the growth zone 
evenly. Remember inside the growth zone is 35%. So again, I looked at this 
maybe a little harder than some of you did; no disrespect, but because I'm the one 
that was pushing it. I had a duty to make sure I firmly understood what I was ... 
Because I knew folks were going to disagree with me. You know, it got its tail 
kicked in at the RPC. Where am I on this ... coming back to it? Twenty-three is a 
fair compromise; you still have the authority to go to the Board of Adjustments to 
seek one greater. I was more concerned with the 21s that couldn't get relief 
because we're currently 20, or the 22s. I found the number 23 based on my, you 
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know just summarily looking at that number. So that's where we are. As far as 
the administration I remind you again we'll get into that the next ordinance, okay? 

Mr. Angel: I'll go on the 23 then just so we can get this moving forth, but the fact 
is, we're making doing something ... Sussex is not doing anything and New Castle 
is all over the place, shows that we're at least taking initiative to look at it. So I 
don't have a problem with that. 

Mr. Banta: I think what's important is that we're in Kent County and we need to 
look out for Kent County. The other Counties can just do what they want to do. 

Mr. Buckson: All that and I need to make sure I've got the right motion in front 
of me so you'll have to correct me if I'm inaccurate here. I've got the one in front 
of me. On our cover letter essentially says that I make a Motion that we pass 
Ordinance LC17-17 increasing the impervious cover limit from 20 to 23% outside 
the Growth Zone and I base that on my comments previously stated, positive 
public testimony and ifl'm missing anything Ms. Keifer please coach me up. 

Ms. Keifer: Simply cite the AC and AR zoning district outside the Growth Zone, 
please. 

Mr. Buckson: In the AR and AC zoning district outside the Growth Zone to be 
included that; seconded by Mr. Angel. 

Roll call: 

Mr. Angel: Yes, reasons stated by Commissioner Buckson. 

Mr. Buckson: Yes for reasons stated. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Yes, based on the reasons given. 

Mr. Howell: Yes, reasons stated. 

Mr. Pepper: Yes, reasons stated; fair compromise. 

Mr. Sweeney: Yes, for reasons stated. 

Mr. Banta: Yes, because it affects the entire County and that's our job is to look 
out for the entire square footage of Kent County so with that I vote yes. 

Roll call reveals seven (7) yeas. Ordinance LC 1 7-17 has been approved. 

Mr. Buckson: 
1. Ordinance LC17-18: Board of Adjustment. An Ordinance to amend 

Kent County Code, Vol. II, Chapter 205, Zoning, as amended by repealing 
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and replacing Article XXVII, Board of Adjustment in order to rearrange 
the sections of the Article, clarify the public hearing procedures for 
applications and allow for administrative variances of area and bulk 
requirements subject to specific limitations. 

Ms. Keifer: Ordinance LC 17-18 makes some adjustments to the Chapter, or the 
Section of 205 that addresses the Board of Adjustment and the variance process. 
Most notably the ordinance calls for a proactive administrative variance process 
for setbacks and for impervious cover within certain thresholds. For setbacks it 
would be 10% of the setback involved or five feet whichever's greater and for 
impervious cover it would be an adjustment of 3%. The process involved would 
still require notification of adjacent property owners just like the Board of 
Adjustment hearing would. What the ... just for the purpose of comparison, right 
now the, that section of the ordinance allows for an administrative variance post
construction. That provision pre-dates my time with the County but my 
presumption is it was implemented for the relatively few instances where 
structure gets placed improperly and you find it at the survey, at the settlement 
survey and you find out a house got placed Y2 a foot into the setback. This was a 
way ... the administrative variance way to try to resolve that situation. Still 
requires adjacent property owner notification but it happens post-construction. 
What this amendment would do is allow it pre-construction so someone could ask 
for this variance before the building permit is issued. But one last item of note, 
and I believe this is what Commissioner Buckson was referring to earlier, it 
provides that even administratively the standards for granting a variance need to 
be met and those standards relate back to an exceptional, practical, difficulty with 
the land; that there's something unusual with the piece of property. As opposed 
to, I want one more thing, your limit is inconvenient. So for example ... 

Mr. Banta: Limiting what? 

Ms. Keifer: The standard for granting a variance is that there's an exceptional, 
practical, difficulty associated with the piece of ground in question rather than the 
desire to add something to the ground. The example I gave Mr. Buckson earlier 
was with impervious cover, there are a fair number of lots that pre-exist the 
County adopting land use regulations. So they're too small; they don't meet the 
minimum lot size so they have a difficult time meeting the area in bulk 
regulations. Perhaps that's a reasonable administrative variance. But overall with 
most circumstances Staff would not be in a position to simply say they're half a 
percent over we'll just approve them; that's not what the standard calls for. So 
that being said, the Regional Planning Commission considered this at their 
September 7th hearing and at their October 12th business did recommend denial of 
the ordinance. I'm happy to answer any questions the Commissioners may have. 

QUESTIONS 
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Mr. Pepper: Thank you for that lead in. I wasn't at the Regional Planning 
Commission meeting. Can you give us some incite as to what they were thinking 
when they unanimously denied ... recommended denial of this? 

Ms. Keifer: The comments by and large had to do with utilizing the Board of 
Adjustment that already exists. They exist for a purpose. The impression I got 
from their comments is they wanted to exercise caution in taking authority away 
from a board that already existed in the County and giving that authority 
exclusively to Staff. I think part of it was, and Commissioner Buckson mentioned 
this earlier how much authority do you want to give an appointed Staff and how 
much authority do you want give the appointees that you choose in your Boards 
of Adjustment or your Regional Planning Commission. They thought the 
authority was more appropriate there. 

Mr. Pepper: Thank you. 

Mr. Sweeney: Ms. Keifer, is there a difference in the fee structure where it comes 
to administrative approval versus having to go in front of the board? 

Ms. Keifer: Its $200.00 for an administrative variance; $250.00 for the Board of 
Adjustment because that has to go to a public hearing. 

Mr. Sweeney: And those fees are still used for the time it takes to review the 
application, sending out notifications and we're still going to do that 
regardless of whether it goes in front of the board or the opportunity to make 
administrative approvals? 

Ms. Keifer: And we do that now for administrative variances. We notify adjacent 
property owners. There's staff time that goes into it. Board of Adjustment is 
slightly higher because we have to advertise a public hearing. 

Mr. Sweeney: Right. So, one of my concerns even with the impervious cover 
was the, some of the restrictive ordinances that have been put in place as a knee 
jerk reaction or a reaction to what came in front of Levy Court back in the early 
2000s. I've always been concerned about people having to go to the Board of 
Adjustment to ask for a three foot setback change. So that will be resolved with 
the changes we're making to the BOA now, correct? For instance, do you 
remember the Briar Park home that wanted to put in the ramp for her husband's 
wheelchair and it was right on the road; she had to come in front of the Board of 
Adjustments. I think we were able to work that out but it would have been 
resolved had this new changes to the Board of Adjustment been put in place. 

Ms. Keifer: It's possible. There are a handful that the Staff would evaluate and 
say it does meet the criteria. I just want to be very clear that most don't. 

Mr. Sweeney: Right. Okay. 
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Ms. Keifer: While the Board of Adjustment may approve them Staff is not in 
a position to do that. 

Mr. Sweeney: Right. Okay, thank you. 

Mr. Pepper: All things considered how much of a time saving would this be for 
someone that comes in, administrative variances opposed to a, going through the 
process, how much time can a person save in order to get the building started? 

Ms. Keifer: We're normally a month to a month and a half out on the Board of 
Adjustment. Their process is a little faster than the ones that go through the 
Planning Commission and Levy Court. Depending on where you are in the cycle, 
could save a few weeks maybe as much as a month, but we generally process 
those pretty quickly. 

Mr. Sweeney: And a savings of $50.00. 

Ms. Keifer: Yes. 

Mr. Sweeney: Now is this on all properties or just residential? 

Ms. Keifer: It doesn't distinguish; it would be all. 

Mr. Sweeney: Thank you. 

Mr. Banta: Ms. Keifer, I'm confident your staff can handle this but my concern is 
when does the public, beyond letters that come in to you, have an opportunity to 
share their concerns, other than at the Board of Adjustment when a variance is 
requested? 

Ms. Keifer: When we do administrative variances now, the few that we do, we do 
send out notification to adjacent property owners. They are given the opportunity 
to express an objection or to outright approve them. That would continue if this 
ordinance were adopted. It's not as formal, obviously as a public hearing with the 
Board of Adjustment. 

Mr. Banta: Let me ask you this question, if in fact your staff received seven 
letters of opposition and were concerned about the future of the district or project, 
what then would happen? I mean, do you take that into consideration, you would 
see what's there, are they still denied the option of public comment? 

Ms. Keifer: I can only speak for myself and my staff as we are now, if we had 
such a substantial objection to a proposal there's no way we would approve it 
administratively. It only seems reasonable to send it on to the Board of 
Adjustment. 
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Mr. Banta: So then shouldn't the ordinance, I'm not the attorney of course, but 
shouldn't it be crafted, I would think with a criteria that says if Staff receives 
more than a certain number of people in opposition for a substantial reason that 
than forces the variance, it puts in operation the Board of Adjustment. 

Ms. Keifer: Look at page 11; page 11, bottom of the page, item F. We've already 
put the failsafe in. If we get an objection we will not approve it. Automatically ... 
and it's the same thing we do with conditional uses right now, with the number of 
conditional uses. Home Occupations right now we handle administratively. You 
see just a handful of them now each year because if an objection comes in and 
that can't get resolved, we can't approve it; it comes directly through the process 
if they want to proceed. 

Mr. Banta: Thank you. 

Mr. Sweeney: So the appeal process for an administrative denial is to appeal it to 
the Board of Adjustment by the applicant ... 

Ms. Keifer: Yes. 

Mr. Sweeney: The Board of Adjustment can then override the administrative 
denial and approve or hold it up and deny it and then the appeal for Board of 
Adjustments can still go to the Courts. 

Ms. Keifer: Superior Court, yes. 

Mr. Sweeney: Because they don't come back to us. 

Ms. Keifer: Correct. 

Mr. Sweeney: Does that process also exist for the approval administratively for 
someone who didn't get their objection in in a timely manner to appeal your 
administrative approval of a variance to be able to take it to the Board of 
Adjustments? 

Ms. Keifer: I don't know if that would go to the Board of Adjustment or if the 
remedy available would be directly to the Court system. I can't give you that 
answer. 

Mr. Sweeney: Okay. I was just curious. Thanks. 

Public Hearing is Open on Ordinance LC17-18 

IN FAVOR- None 
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IN OPPOSITION- None 

Public Hearing is Closed on Ordinance LC17-18 

Mr. Buckson: I make a motion that we approve and I'm going to make that 
motion based on the comments that Ms. Keifer clearly articulated early on as to 
what this does and what it does not do. And I am in full agreeance with that, so I 
understand it. It affords an opportunity on some occasions for relief to be 
provided administratively but does not give the expectation to this Levy Court 
that they're going to weigh in necessarily on percentages, no matter how small 
they are unless it can be demonstrated that there's something at odds. So with 
that I'll make a Motion that we approve LC17-18 Board of Adjustments an 
Administrative Variance to include the information listed on your cover memo. 
Am I needing to include anything else Ms. Keifer, specific to that? 

Ms. Keifer: No, simply because you're not making any amendments, simply 
approving the ordinance with your reasons for approval, I suspect are sufficient. 

Mr. Buckson: So I make that motion based on the comments made by Ms. Keifer, 
myself, as well no public opposition at this time, although clearly the applicants 
prior to this are probably weighing in equal, and that's fair. So anyway, my 
motion is to approve; seconded by Mr. Angel. 

Roll call: 

Mr. Angel: Yes, reasons stated by Commissioner Buckson. 

Mr. Buckson: Yes, per my previous comments. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Yes, based on the previous comments. 

Mr. Howell: Yes, based on a bunch of reasons. 

Mr. Pepper: Yes, good common sense reasons. Yes. 

Mr. Sweeney: Yes, for all reasons stated. 

Mr. Banta: Yes. 

Roll call reveals seven (7) yeas. Ordinance LC 17-18 has been approved. 

CLOSE PUBLIC HEARINGS 

RECESS TO COMMITTEE MEETING- 9:05 

RECONVENE BUSINESS MEETING- 9:13 
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Old Business - None 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. Action Item from October 17, 2017 Community Services Committee 
Meeting: DASEF Special Event- The Great Pumpkin Food Truck Battle, 
Saturday, November 18, 2017. 

Mr. Sweeney: Mr. Shepherd do you want to make a presentation? We don't need 
to make a presentation do we? I'm stalling for time while I get this recommended 
motion up. Gentleman you remember during our committee meeting last week 
that we had some extensive discussions on the DASEF proposal to have the Great 
Pumpkin Food Truck Battle and those discussions surrounded the use of alcohol 
on our properties, access to other facilities on the Big Oak property, signage for 
parking, not using anybody along the street and I have an extensive motion that 
Mr. Petit de Mange put together that I am prepared to read if you'll bear with me. 

I Move to approve the proposed one (1) day fund-raising special event planned 
for Saturday, November 18, 2017, known and promoted as "The Great Pumpkin 
Food Truck Battle" (hereinafter referred to as "Event"), on 40 +/-Acres of 
County-owned land which is the Demised Premises currently under lease to The 
Delaware Aerospace Education Foundation (DASEF) and referred to in the Lease 
Agreement executed on December 18, 2001 as the "DASEF Site", and authorize 
the issuance of a Temporary Activity Permit to DASEF for the purpose of 
conducting said Event subject to the strict adherence to the following conditions 
of approval: 
1) The Event shall commence no earlier than 12 Noon and shall conclude no 

later than 5:00P.M. on Saturday, November 18, 2017, and the Event shall 
be conducted in full compliance with all aspects of the Event Plan as it 
was presented by DASEF to the Community Services Committee of Levy 
Court on October 17, 2017 and included in this proceeding; and, 

2) DASEF shall maintain its compliance with all aspects of the current Lease 
Agreement governing the Use (Article 6) and Management 
(Article 7) of the DASEF Site during the proposed Event; and, 

3) All Event activities including but not limited to: Food Trucks, Vendors 
and Guest Vehicular Parking; Event Day Ticket sales; Food and Beverage 
sales and consumption, including Alcoholic Beverage sales and 
consumption; Performance Staging Areas; Musical Performances; Event 
exhibits, games and all other Event activities shall be contained within 
the physical limits of the demised "DASEF Site" and shall not occur or 
expand onto adjoining County-owned lands not under Lease to DASEF; 
and, 

4) DASEF shall submit a valid Certificate oflnsurance to the Kent County 
Levy Court Office that demonstrates compliance with the provisions of 
Article 7 of the current Lease Agreement relative to required insurance 
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coverage and indemnification of the County, and that names Kent County 
Levy Court as an Additional Insured; and, 

5) DASEF shall secure the services of no less than two (2) uniformed Special 
Duty Police Officers to be stationed on the DASEF Site for the duration of 
the Event; 

6) DASEF shall be solely responsible for providing an adequate number of 
portable restroom facilities for this Event. For an event of this nature and 
limited duration ( 5 Hours), a ratio of 1 restroom per 100 attendees is 
recommended. If the existing restrooms within the DASEF Outpost 
Building are made available for use by Guest of the Event, an additional 
14 port-a-johns are recommended for this Event; and, 

7) DASEF shall supply an adequate number of identifiable Parking 
Attendants to direct Guests to the Event Parking Areas in an efficient, 
effective, and orderly manner, and shall ensure that all Event Parking Area 
drive aisles are maintained open and clear for the free movement of 
vehicles into and out of the Event Parking Areas, and DASEF shall 
actively prohibit vehicular parking of any sort (except Emergency 
and County Personnel Vehicles) along the Paved Access Driveway to Big 
Oak Park; and, 

8) DASEF shall cause to have removed from the Demised Premises all Event 
waste and trash before departing the premises on November 18, 2017; 
and, 

9) A Temporary Certificate of Occupancy shall be obtained from the Kent 
County Department ofPlanning Services, Division of Inspections & 
Enforcement prior to the Event for the placement of any temporary Tents, 
Ticket Booths, Concession Stands and similar structures that are placed on 
the DASEF Site for the Event. 

1 0) This Motion shall be contingent upon the concurrence of the County 
Attorney, and if any conditions or points that have been made in this 
Motion are determined by the County Attorney to be legally in error, such 
conditions or points shall be deleted from the Motion while the balance of 
the Motion shall remain in effect. 

Mr. Petit de Mange, thank you very much for putting this together. I believe, 
gentleman this answers all the questions that came up during committee and we 
will be looking at making changes permanently to ordinances that address most of 
these issues. 

Mr. Buckson: The individuals that were here last week they reviewed this and are 
okay with it? They've seen what we just read and they're good with it? I'm not 
saying they have to be good with it or not but I'd like to know they've reviewed 
it. 

Inaudible 
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Mr. Buckson: Not as they're written, no. That's not as they explained them to us 
during the committee meeting. For example, uniformed police officers versus 
prison guards volunteering; as far as seven port-a-johns versus now whatever this 
number is. I'm not supportive of, well, I guess they don't have an option because 
if they want this they have to agree to it and time is short, is that correct? 

Mr. Angel: I'm in support of what they're doing, I'm not supportive in ... I'm not 
comfortable let's put it that way of asking about the legal issue of signing away ... 
Because if you remember correctly, I said it's been my opinion, I've always been 
told you cannot sign away your liability and I brought that forth, can we get a 
legal opinion on the alcohol since the ordinance is against that. That's my 
concern. I just wanted to make sure we were covering all our bases and I did ask 
for that. 

Mr. Banta: Each of the, as I recall, each of the vendors who have their license for 
dispersing alcohol follow the mandates of the Alcoholic Beverage Control 
Commission. The land itself is not directly owned by us because we've leased it 
for 99 years to DASEF. Restrictions placed on there by Mr. Petit de Mange, once 
that's signed, I think in my opinion at least, I agree with Commissioner Buckson, 
as long as they've read it, understand it and sign it I think we have satisfied the 
concerns that anybody would have in regard to this project. 

Mr. Angel: Once again though no legal opinion that was derived through that 
thought though. I want to make sure. I want to make sure we're doing the right 
thing. I want to do this, but I want to make sure all the bases are covered and I 
have to be, in my mind, clear. It's not clear for me. 

Mr. Banta: Mr. Petit de Mange, we don't have the County Attorney here this 
evening but would it be a possibility, if a motion were made and seconded and 
met with approval, that you would have the opportunity to share that with an 
attorney? If it's not the County Attorney, someone like Fred Townsend who's 
also familiar with policy of County Government; meets with our approval and 
then get signatures if they agree to it, then I would think we could certainly 
move on with that then, would that alleviate some of your concerns, as well as 
Mr. Buckson or not? 

Mr. Buckson: (Inaudible) I am concerned they are going to be concerned with 
some of the, well they were concerned that night. That's all. But I guess ... Well, 
I haven't paid State Troopers before, you know, they're just a fund raiser and their 
margins are going to be thin and if we keep eating into it but you know at the end 
of the day it is what it is, this is late. Not late tonight but late in getting through 
and I guess they're going to have to adhere to it. My best case scenario, I'd like 
to lower the number in regards to security, say or someone similar situated, but I 
don't have time to review that tonight. So, I'm done talking. (Inaudible) 
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Mr. Banta: It would seem to me that, and some things are a matter of reason, and 
I think that a reasonable person, the County Administrator, prepared a document, 
I concur with his findings. I feel that the comfort level of all of us would be 
uplifted to some degree if a County Attorney or some attorney would at least 
review the document, meets with our approval I would think we should be able to 
move forward and let the program go on as designed. That's just my opinion. 

Mr. Buckson: (Inaudible) 

Mr. Banta: So we need ... 

Mr. Petit de Mange: President Banta, I hear what you're saying and this is related 
to Commissioner Angel's concern, I could request, or you could put it in the 
motion contingent upon concurrence of the County Attorney. That would be one 
way to do it. The only caution there would be if the County Attorney obviously 
has problems it would probably negate the whole thing. So, just so everyone 
understands that. We don't meet again until the 7th and, but I think that hearing 
the concern, I wasn't here last week, I kind of prepared this somewhat in a 
vacuum. I kind of expected that they would be here tonight. I'm surprised that no 
one is here from their organization, but I haven't talked to them. So, that's about 
what I would offer is that we would recommend that you condition the motion on 
that. 

Mr. Sweeney: So Mr. Petit de Mange, at this point we are up to nine different 
points. I could add a lOth that's contingent upon the review by legal counsel not 
approval by legal counsel, and there is a significant difference, and let him review 
it. 

Mr. Petit de Mange: Well, I would think you'd want his concurrence on it. 

Mr. Sweeney: Alright, I was trying to get this over on Mr. Angel so, numberlO 
because there's not been a second made yet, so to complete my motion is 
contingent upon the concurrence of this motion by our legal counsel. 

Mr. Petit de Mange: Commissioner Sweeney, not to belabor this any further but 
we may want to say that contingent upon the concurrence of the County Attorney 
and if any points that have been made in the motion are found to be not accepted 
by the County Attorney that they may be deleted from the motion. 

Mr. Sweeney: And that the remainder of the document will stand. Everybody 
understand that? 

Mr. Buckson: If, after review DASEF can demonstrate why something in this 
document is sort of catastrophic and they can provide an alternative that is 
acceptable is there any way to manage to put that in there? Or should we put it in 
there? 
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Mr. Sweeney: We do have an opportunity with the motion and a second of this 
document tonight that gives DASEF the ability to move forward with their 
promotion, because right now it's still listed as tentative on their website and on 
their Facebook page. This gives them the ability to move forward. I don't 
believe anything here is a deal killer but I understand that if for some reason they 
do find something that is financially, a financial hardship to them moving 
forward, November 7th is the committee meeting, November 14th would be a 
business meeting, if they fmd something could we make November ih a 
committee/business meeting to address this issue for this document? 

Mr. Petit de Mange: Sure, we could always do that. 

Mr. Sweeney: You okay with that President Banta and Vice President Pepper? 
So then I would make the amendment that this is a standing document that has the 
ability to be flexible with the review of not only the County Attorney but also 
DASEF. 

Motion was made by Mr. Sweeney to approve the DASEF Special Event- The 
Great Pumpkin Food Truck Battle, Saturday, November 18, 2017; seconded by 
Mr. Howell; carried by roll call six (6) yeas; one (1) not voting. 

Mr. Hosfelt: 
1. Action Item form Committee Meeting: Community Event Promotional 
Grant Application Review and consideration: The Great Pumpkin Food 
Truck Battle at DASEF. 

Mr. Hosfelt: I'd like to Move forward for review and consideration the 
Community Event Promotional Grant Application that's in your packet related to 
The Great Pumpkin Food Truck Battle at DASEF; seconded by Mr. Sweeney; 
carried by roll call six (6) yeas; one (1) not voting. 

Other Business 

Motion by Mr. Pepper to go into Executive Session immediately following the 
Committee Meetings ofNovember 7, 2017 for preliminary discussion on site 
acquisition for a publicly funded capital improvement; legal strategy session 
regarding collective bargaining or pending or potential litigation; and personnel 
matters pursuant to 29 Del. C. 10004 (b) (2), (4), and (9); seconded by 
Mr. Sweeney; carried by roll call seven (7) yeas. 

Information Items 

Mr. Sweeney: On Sunday, this past Sunday Commissioner Pepper, 
Commissioner Howell and myself were in attendance at the 2017 Annual 4-H 
Awards Dinner. Again I emphasize, I only made it half down the tables and my 
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plate was full, couldn't partake of everything that was on the table. It was an 
excellent dinner. The two individual members of the Outstanding 4-H were, the 
Outstanding 4-H male was Garrett Geidel, the Outstanding 4-H female was Leslie 
Webb and they were both, they were up there many, many times before we made 
our presentation with awards that they had received for their many activities 
within the 4-H. The one thing that I wanted to point out and I'm sure this will 
come up in January when we have our 4-H meeting with them so remember this 
number for the game. 6,810 community service hours at the current minimum 
wage that's over $56,000.00 worth of community service that 4-H provides to 
Kent County and Kent County alone. That is a tremendous number and I think as 
I mentioned at the dinner that needed to be applauded and it's pretty impressive. 

Mr. Petit de Mange: I just wanted to alert the Commissioners as some of you may 
know about this, there is a Legislative Taskforce that was formed toward the end 
of the last General Assembly and the meetings have begun. This is a taskforce 
looking at the issue of school district consolidation. Tomorrow evening at Caesar 
Rodney High School there's a Kent County forum, public forum to hear from the 
public on this issue of school district consolidation. It will be at Caesar Rodney 
High School, 6:30p.m. to 8:00p.m. tomorrow. They held a similar meeting last 
week up at William Penn High School and also one in, I think it was in 
Woodbridge in Sussex County and so this is the Kent County public forum. The 
taskforce has been on a fairly aggressive schedule and they've broken up into 
subcommittees and their goal is to have some recommendations for the General 
Assembly consideration in January. If you are interested in hearing what is on the 
public's mind on this issue tomorrow night would be a good night to be at Caesar 
Rodney High School. Thank you. 6:30 to 8:00 p.m., correct. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Just a reminder, Dover Police Department will hold their Second 
Annual Safe Trick or Treat Event. It's going to be at Legislative Mall. It'll be 
Thursday evening starting at 5:30 till 8:00. Parking will be limited but it's a great 
event. It was well attended last year and we expect it to be even bigger this year. 

Public Comments 

Jeremy Shepherd: I just wanted to inform all Levy Court and for the record that 
on Saturday we will be having Make a Difference Day over at Kesselring where 
the Rec Center is and we'll be planting 40, 2" Caliper Trees which we paid about 
$6,000.00 for; that's 40 trees at $6,000.00 not $40,000.00. We'll also be covering 
about 7 to 8 tenths of a mile of trail with the people that come out to volunteer. It 
starts at 9:00a.m. over at Kesselring so you all are all welcome to come and take 
a look at what your Parks maintenance workers are doing, excellent job at doing 
for you guys. 

Mr. Banta: Thank you, Mr. Shepherd you do a great job as usual. And you 
always look good with a tie. I mean it's amazing what it does for you. 
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Mr. Petit de Mange: Mr. President, while he mentioned trees I just want to say 
that's in addition to the 520 some odd trees we are required to plant by our own 
ordinances when we developed this site, so at one tree per ... We were in the 
growth zone so it's one tree per 5,000 square foot I believe. 

Mr. Banta: Are you trying to make a point or did you make it? I think you made 
. .gh? 1t, n t. 

Mr. Petit de Mange: I think I made it. We complied with our own ordinance is 
what I'm saying. 

Commissioner Comments 

Mr. Sweeney: Mr. Shepherd,just want to say I did spend some time at the Park 
on Saturday for the Children's Fantasy Trail. Poly Tech was, provided most of 
the students that were in costume. I believe one of them has a father that's on 
Levy Court that was ... What was he dressed up as, Eric? Was Brent Hey Kitty or 
Mini Mouse? Oh, Nemo, he was Nemo. It was a little long standing line; the 
lady right behind me had some complaints but she did not step out of line, she 
stayed in there and stuck it out. My two grandsons had a great time. You guys 
did a great job. 

Motion to Adjourn was made by Mr. Sweeney; seconded by Mr. Hosfelt and 
Mr. Howell; carried by roll call vote seven (7) yeas. 9:40p.m. 

Trish Brown 
Kent County Deputy Clerk of the Peace 


